
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING
ROOM 113 - BILL LUXFORD STUDIO
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2015

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Roma Amundson, Chair
Larry Hudkins, Vice Chair
Deb Schorr
Bill Avery
Todd Wiltgen

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on September 9, 2015.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at 8:37
a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 3, 2015 STAFF
MEETING 

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded approval of the minutes of the
September 3, 2015 Staff Meeting.  Avery, Hudkins, Wiltgen and
Amundson voted aye.  Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-
0. 

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

None were stated.

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



 3 INSURANCE RENEWALS - Tom Champoux, UNICO Group, Inc.; Sue
Eckley, County Risk Manager; Kari Wiegert, Risk Management Specialist

Tom Champoux, UNICO Group, Inc., presented a coverage/cost comparison for
renewal of the following lines of insurance (Exhibit A):

• Property/Inland Marine

Champoux said this insures the County’s buildings and business personal property at
replacement cost.  He said the County’s property values have increased by $1,669,247
and that is the reason for the increase.

• Law Enforcement/Public Officials/Excess Liability

Champoux said Gemini Insurance Company, which provides general liability coverage,
is a non-admitted carrier so the County must pay a 3% excess and surplus lines tax. 
He said most of the carriers that write large public entity insurance are non-admitted.

Schorr arrived at the meeting at 8:48 a.m.

• Business Auto (Master)

In response to a question from Wiltgen, Champoux said loss experience for the Sheriff’s
vehicles is also considered when the premium is developed.  The Sheriff’s vehicles are
separated out for liability coverage.  Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, noted the
deductible (comprehensive and collision coverage) for the Sheriff’s vehicles is increasing
from $1,000 to $2,000.

Amundson asked what is the next highest department in terms of losses.  Eckley said it
is County Engineering. 

Hudkins asked whether UNICO “shopped” this portion of coverage, noting there is a
competitive market for fleet vehicles.  Champoux said there is a smaller market for auto
lines for public entities and said no other carrier came close to the rate offered by
Continental Western.  He noted there are 284 vehicles in the master fleet with an
overall premium of $81,268.

• Workers’ Compensation

Champoux said the increase of 5.2% over last year is due to a 3% increase in payroll.   
He also noted a correction in the rate increase per 100 of payroll (it should be .193
instead of .913).  Eckley said she is satisfied with that increase.  She also pointed out
the carrier provided an option for the County to increase its retention from $900,000 to

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



$1,000,000, per occurrence.  She recommended against doing so, noting the County 
already has significant exposure and the Nebraska Workers’ Compensation Court would
likely want the County to increase its self-insured fund balance.  Champoux said he
agrees with those comments.

• Crime
• Boiler & Machinery
• Mental Health Crisis Center
• Public Building Commission

NOTE: There is an overall increase of 4% ($24,992.91) this year, which includes
exposure increases. 

Avery asked what UNICO is paid for its professional brokerage services.  Champoux
said the current amount is $39,500, noting there is a 3% increase each year of the five-
year contract.  He also pointed out they do not receive any commissions.  Avery said
the automatic increase seemed arbitrary.  NOTE: The contract expires August 31,
2018.  Eckley noted UNICO advises the County on a number of issues involving
contracts and policies.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to: 1) Accept the coverage as
presented; and 2) Authorize the Chair to sign the necessary documents to
bind coverage.  Hudkins, Schorr, Wiltgen and Amundson voted aye. 
Avery abstained from voting.  Motion carried 4-0, with one abstention.

Champoux said the Board will also need to decide whether to accept Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act (TRIA) coverage, noting it only applies to a foreign act of terrorism that
causes at least $5,000,000 of bodily injury and/or property damage.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Schorr seconded to decline the terrorism coverage.

Avery said he would like more information on the cost.  Champoux agreed to forward
that information. 

ROLL CALL:   Schorr, Wiltgen, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Avery abstained
from voting.  Motion carried 4-0, with one abstention.

 4 DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT IN COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY - Dave Watts;
Pam Dingman, County Engineer; Ken Schroeder, County Surveyor

Dave Watts, 1701 North 112th Street, discussed his request for a variance to extend his
driveway paving beyond his property line into the County right-of-way (ROW) (see

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



Exhibit B).  He said his driveway slopes away from the road and said drainage from the
south washes the driveway out whenever it rains.  Watts said he intended to pave
down to within a couple feet of the road so the water would run over the pavement. 
He said he would also be willing to install a 12" culvert underneath the pavement.

Hudkins asked whether North 112th Street is paved.  Watts said no, it is gravel.  He said
if it was paved, he could pave up to the road.  

Pam Dingman, County Engineer, said it is County Engineering’s standard procedure to
ask property owners to stop their pavement at the ROW line for the safety of
equipment operators.  

Amundson expressed concern there could be damage to the pavement from graders
and snow plows.  Watts said he would keep the pavement back a couple of feet from
the graded area.  Dingman felt it would need to be a greater distance back to prevent 
snowplow blades from catching the pavement edge.  Watts said he could keep the
pavement low enough to reduce that risk.  

Wiltgen asked if the County would be responsible to make repairs if equipment
damaged the pavement.  Dingman said it would not, adding the concern is more the
operators’ safety.  Eagan said, as a general rule, no one can acquire property interest in
the County ROW, which limits their liability.

Watts remarked there are more than 30 driveways in the area that are paved out to the
roadway.  Ken Schroeder, County Surveyor, said the County has required some
property owners who have paved driveways to the road to remove the pavement to the
area behind a culvert so that it would not impede maintenance.  He said this paving
work was stopped by the District Supervisor and said the pavement ends 33 feet back
to where the old ROW was.  NOTE: The road is graded for the Rural to Urban
Transportation System (RUTS) Program so the ROW is 120 feet.  Avery said he does
not believe Watts should be treated differently than his neighbors and asked whether
those property owners secured permits.  Dingman said she would need to be provided
those property locations to determine whether permits were issued. 

Schroeder said the District Supervisor indicated drainage is a problem and
recommended constructing a ditch which would require a culvert.  He said efforts to
construct and maintain a ditch would be hindered if the driveway was paved out
further.  Watts indicated he is opposed to cutting in a ditch because it would increase
the slope on his property which could create further water problems. 

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



Dingman said she would be willing to compromise and say the driveway could be paved
to the old ROW line but would not want it to get within a couple of feet of the paved
section.  Watts said it would help if he could pave his driveway to within four to five
feet of the road or to install and pave over a culvert.

There was consensus to have the County Engineer try to work out a compromise with
Watts.  It was also suggested that property owners who have paved their driveways
out to the County’s ROW and have not been “grandfathered in” be notified that they
are in violation.

 5 SPRINKLERS IN COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW) - Bo Jones; Pam
Dingman, County Engineer; Ken Schroeder, County Surveyor

Bo Jones, 3801 West Bucks Drive, said he was installing a sprinkler system on his
acreage property with lines extending into the County right-of-way (ROW) when he
received a call from County Engineering indicating that was not allowed.  He said he is
a builder and has installed numerous sprinkler systems in City and County that
extended into ROW.  Jones said he has always pulled permits for sprinkler systems and
assumed the inspectors would have notified him if it was not allowed. 

Hudkins said he does not believe Jones is in violation if the Building and Safety
Department inspectors didn’t flag it.  Pam Dingman, County Engineer, said the City’s
permitting system looks at backflow and plumbing issues and said she is not sure
whether the ROW is marked before a sprinkler system is installed.  She acknowledged
there are some sprinkler systems in the County that extend into the ROW but said
County Engineering is trying to maintain a standard.  Dingman said sprinklers
repeatedly saturate roads and can cause damage and said if the road is paved in the
future, there could be pavement failures from saturation.  She also expressed concern
that snow plows could clip the sprinkler heads because they would be in close proximity
to the edge of the road (see photographs in Exhibit C).

Avery noted one of the photographs shows there are brick mailboxes in the County
ROW and suggested they could also be damaged by snow plows.  Dingman agreed that
mailboxes in the ROW are also a hazard. 

Schorr felt approving the request would set a bad precedent.  Jones responded there
are entire subdivisions in the County that have sprinklers right up to the roads.  He said
he could provide examples of a release of liabilities that other jurisdictions have used
for sprinkler systems, noting the property owner would pay a fee and the release would
be filed with the deed and run with the property. 

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded to: 1) Not allow a sprinkler system in
the County right-of-way (ROW) at 3801 West Bucks Drive; and 2) Ask the
Building and Safety Department to increase their oversight with regards to
sprinkler system permits.  Wiltgen, Avery, Hudkins, Schorr and Amundson
voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

RETURNING TO ITEM 4

Schorr questioned whether the Board should go on record with a motion regarding the
driveway paving request Dave Watts.  Dingman asked that she be allowed to continue
discussions with Mr. Watts and said she will report back.  She said she also plans to
discuss the parameters of permits for sprinkler systems with the Building and Safety
Department.  

 6 WELLNESS PROGRAM UPDATE - Judy Halstead, Lincoln-Lancaster
County Health Department (LLCHD) Director; Keerun Kamble, Public
Health Educator, LLCHD; Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager

Keerun Kamble, Public Health Educator, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department
(LLCHD), gave an update on County and City Wellness Activities (Exhibit D).  She also
presented the results of the 2014 Health Risk Appraisal (HRA) and 2015 Blood
Chemistry tests (see Exhibit D).

In response to a question from Schorr, Kamble said there was 21% employee
participation in the HRA, which equates to 178 of the County’s 860 employees.  She
said they hope to improve participation this year. 

Wiltgen asked whether the results of the survey have any impact on the County’s
health insurance rates.  Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, said not at the current time
and suggested that is an issue to discuss with AON Risk Solutions (insurance
consultants).

Wiltgen then asked whether there are any programs that encourage wellness activities
during the workday.  Kamble said there are several strategies, citing standing desks,
desktop stretches and the Sit for 60/Move for 3 Program as examples.  Wiltgen noted
companies in the private sector incentivize wellness programs because of the financial
benefit but said he is not sure how to do that in the government setting.  Judy
Halstead, LLCHD Director, said private sector employers can require certain things of
their employees and said the County does not have that ability because of union
contracts.  She said they have been looking at ways to incentivize going forward. 
Halstead noted the LLCHD has added showers and said that has increased the number
of employees who bike to work.  She said one option would be to reimburse a portion
of an employee’s membership in a fitness center or other physical activity.  Halstead

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



said they have also assigned Mike Heyl, Public Health Educator, to work with County
departments.  Eckley added there is good attendance at the Wellness Committee
meetings.

 7 PROPERTY TAX REQUEST HEARING - Dennis Meyer, Budget and
Fiscal Officer

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, said action will be scheduled on the
September 15th County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda to set a public hearing
to set the final tax request at a different amount than the prior year tax.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. County Board Office Telephone Procedures

The Chair and Vice Chair felt there is still a problem with telephone calls not being
answered in the County Board’s Office (see August 25, 2015 Staff Meeting minutes)
and said they have each received complaints from constituents who have not had calls
answered when they phoned the office.

Eagan said Amundson had asked for technological solutions and said he is not aware of
any other than what has been proposed, rolling unanswered calls to Gwen Thorpe,
Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, then him after a certain number of rings, which he
said he does not support.   He noted calls average between five to eight a day, going
back to June, 2015, and said the County Clerk’s Office is still willing to provide coverage
when Minette Genuchi, Administrative Assistant to the County Board, is away from the
office for an extended period.  Callers have the option to leave a message on voice mail
if Genuchi is briefly away from her desk and she returns those calls upon her return. 
Thorpe asked that Board members share any complaints they receive from constituents
with her or Eagan so they can be addressed.

D. City-County Switchboard Number

Thorpe noted the Board decided last year to give up the University of Nebraska-Lincoln
(UNL) operator and switchboard services due to costs.  The telephone number, (402)
441-7171, had already been printed in the “Blue Pages” (listing of government offices)
in the telephone book so it was decided to retain the number for one year, with a
phone tree (automated telephone information system).  She said she asked to have the
County options removed from the recording after surveying County departments and
determining they were not needed, but said the Mayor’s Office objected.  Thorpe
relayed the options on the recording and said she doesn’t believe the calls coming into
the County Board’s Office are as a result of that number. 

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



Amundson noted the “Blue Pages” listing is free so it may be appropriate to leave the
number but designate it as an information line instead of a switchboard.

Wiltgen suggested monitoring of the line to see if it is beneficial.

B. Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) Panel of Speakers for
Legislative Bill (LB) 607

There was consensus to designate Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, to
represent Lancaster County, with Sara Hoyle, Human Services Director, as the back-up.

C. Human Resources Coordinator Update

Eagan said Doug McDaniel, Lincoln-Lancaster County Human Resources Director, has
estimated the hiring process could take one to two months provided they are able to
use re-appropriated funds.  If not, the process could take up to seven months.

Schorr felt the Board should participate in the selection.  Amundson said the Mayor has
indicated he is amenable to that.

There was consensus to schedule further discussion with McDaniel on the September
17th County Board Staff Meeting agenda.

D. City-County Switchboard Number

Item was moved forward on the agenda (see Item A).

DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

B. Public Building Commission (PBC) Chair Meeting with Mayor - Hudkins

Hudkins said the Mayor requested an update on the 605 Building.

C. Railroad Transportation Safety District (RTSD) - Avery, Hudkins, Schorr

Schorr said they approved the budget with a 1.6% levy; received updates on the North
33rd Street and Cornhusker Highway interchange and Southwest 40th Street viaduct
projects; and discussed the proposed memorandum of understanding (MOU) for future
funding of the RTSD and two “quiet zone” (railroad grade crossing at which trains are
prohibited from sounding their horns in order to decrease the noise level for nearby
residential communities) projects in Southwest Lincoln and the Village of Denton.  

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



Wiltgen asked when the study and options for the North 33rd Street and Cornhusker
Highway interchange will be released.  Schorr said the design phase will be completed
by June, 2016.  The first public meeting will be in October at which time preliminary
proposals will be made available.

D. Meeting with Mayor - Amundson, Hudkins

Amundson said discussion primarily focused on evaluation of joint directors, the North
84th Street and Havelock Avenue intersection, redesign of “K” Street, and the City-
County switchboard.

E. Public Building Commission (PBC) - Amundson, Hudkins

Hudkins said they discussed a request for track lighting for the public art that is
displayed in the County-City Building and said it was suggested that a request for a
grant be submitted to the Visitors Promotion Committee (VPC).  He also reported that
the sally port in the 605 Building is now operational.

F. Board of Health - Amundson

Amundson said they received updates on West Nile virus, chlamydia rates, City &
County Employee Wellness Program, and the Safe Kids Lincoln-Lancaster County
Initiative. 

The Chair recessed the meeting at 10:41 a.m.

 8 TECHNICAL BRIEFING ON TEXT AMENDMENT NO. 15009
AMENDING SECTION 13.018 OF THE LANCASTER COUNTY
ZONING REGULATIONS, COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY
CONVERSION SYSTEMS - Steve Henrichsen, Development Review
Manager, City of Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Department; Judy
Halstead, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD) Director;
Scott Holmes, Environmental Public Health Division Manager, LLCHD (This
Agenda Item Will be Heard in the City Council/County Commissioners
Hearing Room, Room 112)

The Chair reconvened the meeting at 10:54 a.m.  Hudkins was absent.

Information regarding the proposed text amendment was disseminated to the Board
prior to the meeting (Exhibit E).

Steve Henrichsen, Development Review Manager, City of Lincoln/Lancaster County
Planning Department, gave an overview of Text Amendment No. 1500, requested by
the City of Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Department and Lincoln-Lancaster

Page 9 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



County Health Department (LLCHD), to amend the County’s zoning regulations put in
place in 2011 regarding Section 13.018 Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems
(CWECS) to revise the special permit conditions for wind turbine projects regarding
decommissioning, shadow flicker, impact on environmental resources and view
corridors, setbacks, noise, noise studies and other conditions (see Exhibit E).  He said
an application from Volkswind USA for a special permit for certain sites is currently on
hold to see whether there will be revised regulations or not.  Henrichsen displayed a
map of special use permit areas (Exhibit F) and said the text amendment would allow
property leased on both sides of a street to be counted as a contiguous boundary in the
special permit application.  If there wasn’t that provision, 25 to 30 separate special
permits could come forward at one time which would be very difficult to process.

Hudkins returned to the meeting at 11:00 a.m. 

Henrichsen said the Planning Staff Report (see Exhibit E) is broke into topic areas,
noting the discussion with the Wind Energy Working Group was laid out in a similar
fashion, i.e., a topic and specific proposed actions.  Those topics areas are:

• Economic Implications for Land Owners & County
• Processing of Multiple Turbines over a Large Area
• Applicable Codes
• Color, Finish and Lighting
• Decommissioning of Wind Towers
• Shadow Flicker
• Environmental Implications
• Ice Throw
• Important View corridors
• Setback to Dwelling
• Setback to Right-of-Way
• Setback to Special Permit Boundary
• Impact on Property Value of Adjacent Land
• Impact on Development and Subdivisions
• Emergency Response to Turbine Fire
• Noise
• Noise Studies & Monitoring
• Public Road Improvements Needed for Construction
• Noise Complaints
• Interference
• County Liability for Approval of Wind Turbines

NOTE: See Exhibit E for proposed actions.

Page 10 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



Hudkins noted proposed language under decommissioning of wind towers: Upon
removal of the tower, there shall be four feet of soil between the ground level and
former tower’s cement base.  Henrichsen said the language gives more flexibility to the
operator and there would still be four feet of cover.  Hudkins said the landowner would
still have liability if they wanted to remove the cement to a reasonable depth in the
future.  Henrichsen said that is correct, adding decommissioning is typically part of the
contract between the operator and property owner.  

Henrichsen noted the following language under Environmental Implications (see Exhibit
E): Construction and operation shall not adversely impact identified State or Federal
threatened or endangered species such as saline wetlands, or rare natural resources
such as native prairie and grasslands, and said Volkswind has requested an
amendment.  He said there are currently four resources in Lancaster County on the
State and Federal threatened and endangered species lists: Salt Creek Tiger Beetle
(State and Federal endangered species), Saltwort Plant (State endangered species),
Western Prairie Fringe Orchid (State and Federal threatened species) and Whooping
Crane (State and Federal endangered species).  Native prairie and grasslands were also
included because the Lincoln-Lancaster County Comprehensive Plan states all
development actions should take care not to impact rare natural resources.  He said
there is also a State and Federal process that wind turbines must go through which
includes an environmental analysis.

In response to a question from Amundson, Henrichsen said a participating owner is one
who has signed a contract that would run with the land for a significant period and has
received compensation.  He said the special permit would also continue to the new
owner if the wind turbine is sold to another company.  

Henrichsen said in terms of the noise standard, LLCHD believes it should be the same
whether properties are participating or non-participating.  Some differences are being
allowed for setbacks because the impact may be visual or to the property value, rather
than a health concern.  Participating owners are receiving compensation for those
impacts.  He noted non-participating owners may argue that there could be a negative
impact to their property values without compensation.  

Amundson asked how much compensation is being given to participating owners. 
Henrichsen said it could vary.  Property owners in some counties have gone together
and marketed themselves as a group so everyone received the same compensation.

Henrichsen explained the different types of setbacks (see Exhibit E), noting the impact
on a small acreage lot is much different than the impact on a large farm parcel.  He
said ten acres was chosen as the dividing line between residential and farm lots and
gave an example of how the setbacks are calculated using property boundary to turbine

Page 11 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



height (the highest point of the blade as it is extended vertically) (see Exhibit G). 
NOTE: See Exhibit E for total turbine height of various wind turbine projects in
Nebraska.  Henrichsen noted most of the turbines in Nebraska are between 400 to 500
feet tall but said other states have taller turbines.  The tallest turbine in the world is in
700 feet tall.  Lincoln Electric System’s (LES’) turbines north of Lincoln are 290 feet tall. 
He said one point that will likely be raised in testimony at the public hearing is what is
the appropriate setback and should it be measured to the property line or the dwelling
unit.

Hudkins asked in the event a wind turbine was replaced with a taller one, would the
new wind turbine require a special permit.  Henrichsen said the special permit would be
very specific to the height.  If a company wanted to change the height, it would have
to go back through the process and meet the new setbacks.

Henrichsen also explained a non-participating owner of a vacant parcel would still have
the legal right to build on their lot within wind turbine setbacks as long as they met
Agricultural (AG) zoning setback requirements.  Any wind turbines that were already
there could remain but would become non-conforming. 

Amundson said she is aware of a situation in which a seven acre lot is in a flood way
and only a small portion is buildable and asked how it would be impacted if a wind
turbine was located in close proximity.  Henrichsen said the owners could legally build
anywhere on their property outside of the flood way and setbacks.  The wind turbine
would become non-conforming but could remain.

Wiltgen asked why lots of ten acres or less are being treated differently.  Henrichsen
said they chose ten acres as the dividing line because you can sell ten acres off your
property without a subdivision.  He added that anything below ten acres seems more
like an acreage.  

Wiltgen asked Henrichsen to explain the difference between the dwelling and the
property line.  Henrichsen said a smaller lot should be measured to the property line
which gives the property owner more protection, i.e., they have the setback and some
distance to where the house is actually located.  He said larger properties are measured
to the property line because there are more areas they could potentially locate. 
Henrichsen said the challenge, which he said is a land use decision, is what is that
“tipping point” between reducing negative impacts on non-participating property
owners versus those who wish to have wind energy on their properties.  He said they
tried to draft the language to say there needs to be some protection for non-
participating property owners because of the impact it might have on the value of their
property, their enjoyment of their property, and their health.

Page 12 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



Scott Holmes, Environmental Public Health Division Manager, Lincoln-Lancaster County
Health Department (LLCHD), gave a PowerPoint presentation on Sound, Noise & Wind
Turbines (Exhibit H), noting the following: 

• Existing County Zoning Resolution 13.018 which addresses Commercial
Wind Energy Conversion Systems (CWECS)
< 35 dB(A) (decibels) at all times measured at the property line

• Proposed noise limits in the text amendment
< 40 dB(A) measured as a 10 min Leq (average noise level over a

specified period of time) during daytime hours (7 a.m. to 10 p.m.)
< 37 dB(A) measured as a 10 min Leq at night
< Measured at the dwelling unit

• Proposed Text Amendment
< Requires a noise study prior to construction
< Noise complaints referred to County Board to determine

appropriate action
• Definitions
• What is known about the sound generated by wind turbines

< Blades slicing through the air can create a ‘swish’ sound with 
midrange & high frequencies

< The lack of smooth airflow can create some low frequency ‘thump’
sounds that also ‘pulses’ the higher frequencies

< The inside the turbine nacelle (housing) can create some ‘whirr’
sounds with bass and midrange frequencies

< All of the above tend to increase with wind speed
< The transformer sub-station can generate some ‘hum’ tones as well

as sounds from associated cooling systems
< Sound changes with distance
< Multiple turbines can produce modulation effects in the sound
< Wind turbines generate sound (acoustic waves) below the human

hearing range (infra-sound)
< dB(A) sound levels correlate with infra-sound levels

• What is known about the noise associated with wind turbines
< Most noise complaints are associated with the ‘swishing pulses’
< Many noise complaints are associated with night-time operations,

especially sleep disturbance

Holmes also discussed noise annoyance which he said can cause health effects which
he said can be measured physiologically, in the central nervous system and in
biochemical changes.  He said annoyance is correlated with many factors (see Exhibit
H), especially with wind turbines.

Page 13 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



NOTE: See Exhibit H for annoyance comparisons and information from various studies.
Holmes said there are two ways of protecting people from wind turbine noise levels: 1)
Setbacks; and 2) Performance-based approach (size of the turbines, type of blades,
technology to reduce the amount of noise generated).

Wiltgen said it is his understanding that the current zoning regulations regarding noise
are more stringent than what is proposed.  Holmes said that is correct.  He said
Volkswind was aware of the regulations and proposed changes to the text amendment
to increase the level of decibels. 

Avery asked how difficult is it would be for a wind turbine developer to get to 37 dB(A). 
Holmes said it depends on the distance and location of the wind turbines.  He said
there are other locations in the area than what Volkswind initially proposed that would
probably allow them to locate wind turbines.  Avery said then this may not be the best
place to locate a wind farm.  Holmes said he can’t answer that as his focus was on the
health impacts and felt adoption of the 37dB(A) and 40 dB(A) standards would provide
health protection and would not preclude wind energy from developing.  Avery asked
whether there are state standards.  Holmes said there are no state or national
standards in place but said it is an area that probably needs to be addressed.  He said
European standards are almost all Country-based and said Canada’s are by province.
Avery asked if it is likely that standards set by Lancaster County might influence other
counties.  Holmes said he did not know.

In response to a question from Schorr, Holmes said they will present information about
health effects at the public hearing.

Schorr asked Henrichsen for a time line of what has occurred beginning with the first
special permit application from Volkswind.  Henrichsen said Volkswind first made
application in September, 2014 and also submitted a text amendment that would have
changed the regulations.  He said their special permit application was based on their
proposed changes.  Volkswind had discussions with staff and started to proceed in
January, 2015.  Henrichsen said there were a number of negative comments about the
proposal and process and staff asked Volkswind to withdraw their text amendment,
which they agreed to do.  After meeting with the County Board, staff set up the
Working Group, which held a series of meetings from March through May, 2015.  He
said draft text wording was presented to that group for input.  The first draft in a
normal zoning regulation format was released on June 8, 2015, with a 30-day comment
period.  Another draft was released on July 9, 2015, based on those comments.  The
Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed
text amendment on August 19, 2015.  Comments following that public hearing were
directed to the County Board.  NOTE: Copies of those letters were not made available
to the County Clerk’s Office.

Page 14 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



Schorr asked whether the Volkswind alternative letter (see Exhibit E) was addressed as
part of the Planning Commission’s public hearing.  Henrichsen said the letter was sent
to the Planning Commission prior to their hearing and said it was the most specific
alternative that was presented.  The Planning Commission recommended only two of
the changes in Volkswind’s alternative: 1) Remove the 30 minutes in any one day
requirement under shadow flicker; and 2) Change the noise standard to 50 dB(A)
during the day and 42 db(A) during the night (see Exhibit E).  Schorr asked whether
the County Board Fact Sheet (see Exhibit E) represents those changes.  Henrichsen said
it does on Pages 19-21.

Schorr requested an update on Gage County.  Henrichsen said the proposal from
Volkswind falls in both southern Lancaster County and northern Gage County, which
already has the Steele Flats wind farm, and said Gage County was also invited to work
with the Working Group, which they did.  He said once the Planning Department began
drafting regulations, Gage County indicated it would rather move forward with its own
process.  Henrichsen thought Gage County was planning to have a public information
meeting in September but was not sure of the date.  He said Gage County already has
wind regulations in place and said he doesn’t know if they will make any changes.

Amundson asked Holmes whether the World Health Organization’s (WHO’s) noise
studies were also utilized in the report.  Holmes said they were (see a list of the studies
on Page 24 of the County Board Factsheet in Exhibit E).  

In response to a question from Avery, Holmes said WHO’s recommendation for 
nighttime noise from other sources such as traffic is 40 dB(A).  He said to his
knowledge they have not specifically studied wind energy.  

Amundson noted that Denmark is very aggressive in regulating wind speed and time of
day.  Holmes said Denmark has the largest portfolio, percentage-wise, of energy
generated by wind of any country in Europe so having stringent regulations does not
mean that wind energy cannot be developed.

In response to a question from Wiltgen, Holmes explained that three decibels is
typically the level at which you can detect a difference.

NOTE: The County Board will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, October 20th, at 4:30
p.m. in the City Council/County Commissioners Hearing Room, Room 112, on the
proposed text amendment.  A sign-up sheet for anyone wishing to provide testimony
will be available outside the hearing room at 4:15 p.m.  Testimony will be taken in the
order in which individuals signed up, rather than proponents and opponents, and will
be limited to three minutes per person.

Page 15 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015



 9 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

10 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. County Board Office Telephone Procedures
B. Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) Panel of Speakers for

Legislative Bill (LB) 607
C. Human Resources Coordinator Update
D. City-County Switchboard Number

Items A-D were moved forward on the agenda.

11 PENDING

There were no pending items.

12 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Lincoln Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

Meeting was cancelled.

B. Public Building Commission (PBC) Chair Meeting with Mayor - Hudkins
C. Railroad Transportation Safety District (RTSD) - Avery, Hudkins, Schorr
D. Meeting with Mayor - Amundson, Hudkins
E. Public Building Commission (PBC) - Amundson, Hudkins
F. Board of Health - Amundson

Items B-F were moved forward on the agenda.

13 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.

14 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded to adjourn the meeting at 12:10
p.m.  Wiltgen, Schorr, Hudkins, Avery and Amundson voted aye.  Motion
carried 5-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 16 BOC/STAFF/09/10/2015
























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































